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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR 
 THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

 
________________________________ 
MICHELLE T. SEIDNER   :    
Philadelphia, PA 19128   : CIVIL ACTION NO.  
      : 
    Plaintiff, : 
      : 
  v.    : 
      : 
CITY OF PHILADELPHIA  : 
Three South Penn Square   : 
Philadelphia, PA 19107   : 
      : 
   &   : 
      : 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY    : 
LAWRENCE KRASNER   : 
Three South Penn Square   : 
Philadelphia, PA 19107   : 
      : JURY TRIAL DEMANDED  
   Defendants.  :  
________________________________ : 
 

COMPLAINT 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 
 Plaintiff, Michelle T. Seidner, devoted over thirty-four (34) years of her life as an employee 

of the City of Philadelphia (“Defendant City”) in the District Attorney’s Office.  Plaintiff began 

her career as an Assistant District Attorney in the Municipal Court division and, amidst stellar 

performance, rose the organizational ranks to earn a position in the prestigious Economic and 

Cyber Crime Unit.  However, in January 2018, Defendant City, and Lawrence Krasner, District 

Attorney of the City of Philadelphia (“Defendant Krasner”) (collectively referred to as 

“Defendants”), terminated Plaintiff’s employment without any explanation or advance warning.  

Defendants did so because of Plaintiff’s age.  
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 Plaintiff now brings claims against Defendant City for violations of the Age Discrimination 

in Employment Act, as amended, 29 U.S.C. §623 et seq. (“ADEA”); the Equal Protection Clause 

of the Constitution pursuant 42 U.S.C. §1983 (“Section 1983”); the Pennsylvania Human Relations 

Act, as amended, 43 P.S. §951, et seq. (“PHRA”); and the Philadelphia Fair Practices Ordinance, 

as amended, Phila. Code §9-1101, et seq. (“PFPO”).  Plaintiff brings claims against Defendant 

Krasner pursuant to Section 1983. Plaintiff seeks damages, including back-pay, front-pay, 

compensatory, punitive, liquidated, costs and attorneys’ fees, and all other relief that this Court 

deems appropriate. 

II. PARTIES 

1. Plaintiff, Michelle T. Seidner, is an individual and a citizen of the Commonwealth of 

Pennsylvania. 

2.  Plaintiff was sixty (60) years of age at the time of her termination. 

3. Defendant City is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, with 

an office located at Three South Penn Square, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19107.   

4. Defendant Krasner is the current District Attorney of Defendant City.  He is exclusively 

being sued in his individual capacity. 

5. At all times material hereto, Defendant City employed more than twenty (20) 

employees. 

6. Defendants have engaged in a pattern and practice of considering age when making 

employment decisions.   

7. At all times material hereto, Defendants instituted, acquiesced in, ratified and/or made 

employment decisions based on age. 
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8. At all times material hereto, Defendant City acted by and through its authorized agents, 

servants, workmen, and/or employees acting within the course and scope of their 

employment with Defendant City and in furtherance of Defendant City’s business. 

9. At all times material hereto, Defendant City acted as an employer within the meaning 

of the statutes forming the basis of this matter. 

10. At all times material hereto, Plaintiff was an employee of Defendant City within the 

meaning of the statutes forming the basis of this matter. 

III. JURISDICTION AND VENUE 
 

11. The causes of action which form the basis of this matter arise under the ADEA, Section 

1983, the PHRA, and the PFPO.  

12. The District Court has jurisdiction over Count I (ADEA) pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1331. 

13. The District Court has jurisdiction over Count II (Section 1983) pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 

§1331. 

14. The District Court has supplemental jurisdiction over Count III (PHRA) pursuant to 28 

U.S.C. §1367. 

15. The District Court has supplemental jurisdiction over Count IV (PFPO) pursuant to 28 

U.S.C. §1367. 

16. Venue is proper in the District Court under 28 U.S.C. §1391(b) and                         

42 U.S.C. §2000e-5. 

17. On or about March 23, 2018, Plaintiff filed a Complaint with the Pennsylvania Human 

Relations Commission (“PHRC”), complaining of the acts of discrimination alleged 

herein.  This Complaint was cross-filed with Equal Employment Opportunity 

Commission (“EEOC”).  Attached hereto, incorporated herein and marked as Exhibit 
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“A” is a true and correct copy of the Complaint (with personal identifying information 

redacted).    

18. On or about June 25, 2019, the EEOC issued to Plaintiff a Notice of Right to Sue for 

her Complaint.  Attached hereto, incorporated herein and marked as Exhibit “B” is a 

true and correct copy of the notice with personal identifying information redacted.  

19. Plaintiff has fully complied with all administrative prerequisites for the commencement 

of this action. 

IV. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS  

20. Plaintiff was hired by Defendant City on or about November 3, 1983. 

21. On or about January 5, 2018, Plaintiff was notified that her employment with the city 

was being terminated, effective on or about January 12, 2018. 

22. Over the course of her employment, Plaintiff served as an Assistant District Attorney 

within various units of Defendant City DA’s Office.  

23. At the time of her termination, Plaintiff held the position of Assistant District Attorney 

within the Economic and Cyber Crimes Unit.  

24. Plaintiff consistently performed her job duties in a highly competent manner and 

received positive performance feedback.  

25. At the time of her termination, Plaintiff reported to Lisa Caulfield (“Caulfield”), Chief, 

Economic and Cyber Crime Unit.  

26. Upon information and belief, Caulfield was approximately forty-two (42) years of age 

as of January 2018. 

27. Caulfield reported to Sybil Murphy (“Murphy”), Deputy of Investigations Division. 
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28.  Murphy reported to John Delaney (“Delaney”), First Assistant District Attorney and 

Deputy of Trial Division.  

29. Delaney reported to Defendant Krasner. 

30. At all times material hereto, Defendants have exhibited an age bias as it pertains to 

employment decisions in the District Attorney’s Office.  

31. In an interview published by The Intercept on May 16, 2017, regarding his plans if 

elected District Attorney, Defendant Krasner stated the following: “There are other 

people who are going to be made to leave because you cannot bring about real change 

and leave people in place who are going to fight change every step of the way. The 

ones who will leave will tend to be my generation, people who started in this business 

30 years ago, which means they’ll also tend to be white and male.  That results in more 

openings, opportunities for greater diversity . . . the office will become a tremendous 

magnet for new talent . . . And there are a lot of just malleable, mostly younger attorneys 

who did what they were told, and always wanted to do the right thing, and with proper 

training will do the right thing.  I think real cultural change is possible.” 

32. On November 7, 2017, Defendant Krasner was elected as Defendant City’s next 

District Attorney. 

33. On January 2, 2018, Defendant Krasner was sworn in as Defendant City’s District 

Attorney. 

34. On January 5, 2018, Defendants notified Plaintiff by letter that, if she did not retire or 

resign by January 8, 2018, her employment would be terminated effective January 12, 

2018.  

35. Defendants offered no options for Plaintiff to remain employed. 
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36. On January 12, 2018, Defendants terminated Plaintiff’s employment, effective 

immediately.  

37. Defendants did not interview Plaintiff, inform Plaintiff of any selection criteria, or 

provide Plaintiff with any reason for her termination. 

38. Plaintiff had no disciplinary or performance issues throughout her more than thirty-

four (34) years of employment with Defendant City.  

39. Defendants terminated several other employees over age fifty (50), including Delaney, 

effective January 12, 2018. 

40. Upon information and belief, Delaney was approximately sixty-one (61) years of age 

as of his termination. 

41. Plaintiff was Caulfield’s only direct report terminated effective January 12, 2018. 

42. As of Plaintiff’s termination, Defendants retained Caulfield’s two (2) other direct 

reports: Kimberly Esack (“Esack”), Assistant District Attorney, and Harold “Rich” 

Bauer (“Bauer”), Assistant District Attorney. 

43. Upon information and belief, Esack is substantially younger than Plaintiff, and was 

approximately thirty-eight (38) years of age as of Plaintiff’s termination.  

44. Upon information and belief, Bauer is substantially younger than Plaintiff, and was 

approximately forty-five (45) years of age as of Plaintiff’s termination. 

45. Both Esack and Bauer are less experienced and less qualified than Plaintiff. 

46. Defendants failed to provide any explanation, including the selection criteria, as to why 

Plaintiff was terminated while the substantially younger and less qualified Esack and 

Bauer were retained. 
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47. Upon her termination, Plaintiff’s job duties were assigned to substantially younger and 

less qualified employees, including but not limited to Esack and Bauer.  

48. After Plaintiff’s termination, Defendants hired and/or promoted a considerable number 

of substantially younger and less qualified Assistant District Attorneys.  

49. Plaintiff’s age was a motivating and/or determinative factor in Defendants’ 

discriminatory treatment of Plaintiff, including the termination of her employment. 

50. Defendants have failed to provide a legitimate, non-discriminatory reason for 

Plaintiff’s termination. 

51. As a direct and proximate result of the discriminatory conduct of Defendants, Plaintiff 

has in the past incurred, and may in the future incur, a loss of earnings and/or earning 

capacity, loss of benefits, pain and suffering, embarrassment, humiliation, loss of self-

esteem, mental anguish, and loss of life’s pleasures, the full extent of which is not 

known at this time. 

52. Defendants acted willfully and intentionally, and with malice and/or reckless 

indifference to Plaintiff’s protected rights, thus warranting the imposition of punitive 

damages. 

COUNT I – ADEA 
(Plaintiff v. Defendant City) 

 
53. Plaintiff incorporates the foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if set forth herein 

in their entirety. 

54. By committing the foregoing acts of discrimination against Plaintiff, Defendant City 

violated the ADEA. 

55. Plaintiff’s age was a motivating and/or determinative factor in Defendant City’s 

termination of her employment. 
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56. Defendant City’s violations of the ADEA were intentional and willful under the 

circumstances, warranting the imposition of liquidated damages. 

57. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant City’s violation of the ADEA, Plaintiff 

has sustained the injuries, damages, and losses set forth herein and has incurred 

attorneys’ fees and costs.  

58. Plaintiff is now suffering and may continue to suffer irreparable injuries and monetary 

damages as a result of Defendant City’s discriminatory acts unless and until the Court 

grants the relief requested herein. 

59. No previous application has been made for the relief requested herein. 

COUNT II – Section 1983 
(Plaintiff v. Defendants) 

 
60. Plaintiff incorporates the foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if set forth herein 

in their entirety. 

61. By committing the foregoing acts of discrimination against Plaintiff, Defendants 

violated Section 1983. 

62. Plaintiff’s age was a motivating and/or determinative factor in Defendants’ termination 

of her employment. 

63. Defendants’ discriminatory conduct, as set forth herein, deprived Plaintiff of equal 

protection under the law as guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amendment of the United 

States Constitution. 

64. Defendants’ constitutional violation included policies, practices, and/or customs to 

treat employees less favorably because of their age, and such was committed, directed, 

implemented, and/or ratified by Defendants. 
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65. Defendants acted willfully and/or intentionally with malice and/or reckless indifference 

to Plaintiff’s federally protected rights, warranting the imposition of punitive damages. 

66. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ violation of Section 1983, Plaintiff has 

sustained the injuries, damages, and losses set forth herein, and has incurred attorneys’ 

fees and costs.  

67. Plaintiff is now suffering and may continue to suffer irreparable injury and monetary 

damages as a result of Defendants’ discriminatory acts unless and until this Court grants 

the relief requested herein. 

68. No previous application has been made for the relief requested herein. 

COUNT III – PHRA 
(Plaintiff v. Defendant City) 

 
69. Plaintiff incorporates the foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if set forth herein 

in their entirety. 

70. By committing the foregoing acts of discrimination against Plaintiff, Defendant City 

violated the PHRA. 

71. Plaintiff’s age was a motivating and/or determinative factor in Defendant City’s 

termination of her employment. 

72. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant City’s violation of the PHRA, Plaintiff 

has sustained the injuries, damages, and losses set forth herein, and has incurred 

attorneys’ fees and costs. 

73. Plaintiff is now suffering and may continue to suffer irreparable injuries and monetary 

damages as a result of Defendant City’s discriminatory acts unless and until the Court 

grants the relief requested herein. 

74. No previous application has been made for the relief requested herein. 
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COUNT IV – PFPO 
(Plaintiff v. Defendant City) 

 
75. Plaintiff incorporates the foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as if set forth herein 

in their entirety. 

76. By committing the foregoing acts of discrimination against Plaintiff, Defendant City 

violated the PFPO. 

77. Plaintiff’s age was a substantial, motivating, and/or determinative factor in Defendant 

City’s termination of her employment. 

78. Defendant City acted willfully and/or intentionally with malice and/or reckless 

indifference to Plaintiff’s federally protected rights, and Defendant City’s conduct was 

especially egregious, warranting the imposition of punitive damages. 

79. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant City’s violation of the PFPO, Plaintiff 

has sustained the injuries, damages, and losses set forth herein, and has incurred 

attorney’s fees and costs.  

80. Plaintiff is now suffering and may continue to suffer irreparable injuries and monetary 

damages as a result of Defendant City’s discriminatory acts unless and until the Court 

grants the relief requested herein. 

81. No previous application has been made for the relief requested herein. 

RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks damages and legal and equitable relief in connection with 

Defendants’ discriminatory conduct, and specifically prays that the Court grant the following relief 

to Plaintiff by: 

(a) declaring the acts and practices complained of herein to be in violation of the ADEA; 

(b) declaring the acts and practices complained of herein to be in violation of Section 1983; 
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(c) declaring the acts and practices complained of herein to be in violation of the PHRA; 

(d) declaring the acts and practices complained of herein to be in violation of the PFPO; 

(e) enjoining and permanently restraining the violations alleged herein; 

(f) entering judgment against Defendants and in favor of Plaintiff in an amount to be 

determined; 

(g) awarding compensatory damages to make Plaintiff whole for all lost earnings, earning 

capacity and benefits, past and future, which Plaintiff has suffered or may suffer as a 

result of Defendants’ discriminatory conduct; 

(h) awarding compensatory damages to Plaintiff for past and future pain and suffering, 

emotional upset, mental anguish, humiliation, and loss of life’s pleasures, which 

Plaintiff has suffered or may suffer as a result of Defendants’ discriminatory conduct; 

(i) awarding Plaintiff back-pay; 

(j) awarding Plaintiff front-pay; 

(k) awarding liquidated damages to Plaintiff; 

(l) awarding punitive damages to Plaintiff; 

(m) awarding Plaintiff such other damages as are appropriate under the ADEA, Section 

1983, the PHRA, and the PFPO; 

(n) awarding Plaintiff the costs of suit, expert fees and other disbursements, and reasonable 

attorneys’ fees, and; 
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(o) granting such other and further relief as this Court may deem just, proper, or equitable, 

including other equitable and injunctive relief, providing restitution for past violations, 

and preventing future violations.  

 

CONSOLE MATTIACCI LAW LLC 
 
         
Dated:  September 20, 2019         By: /s/ Kevin Console  
         Kevin Console, Esq.  
         1525 Locust St., 9th Floor 
         Philadelphia, PA 19102 
         (215) 545-7676 
          
         

Attorney for Plaintiff, 
Michelle T. Seidner 
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Exhibit “B” 
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